
 Regular Meeting AGENDA, April 17, 2024 | Page 1 of 3 
 

NEWTON FALLS CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Wednesday, April 17, 2024; 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
612 WEST BROAD STREET 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS  CITY ADMINISTRATION 
     
Ward 1 Patricia Benetis  Interim City Manager Mike Novotny 
Ward 2 Brian Axiotis  Law Director Jeff Limbian 
Ward 3 Brenda Persino  Finance Director Sean Housley 
Ward 4 Kevin Rufener  Clerk of Council Michael Acomb 
At- Large Julie Stimpert    
Mayor David Hanson    

 

I. Call to Order 
II. Pledge of Allegiance / Silent Prayer 

III. Roll Call 
IV. Changes To Tonight’s Agenda 
V. Special Presentations by Staff Members or Invited Consultants 

Mr. Housley – Presentation of the Finance Department 2023 Year-End Report 
VI. Public Comments (Agenda Items Only) 

VII. Reports 
a. Mayor  
b. Council Members 
c. Finance Director 
d. Law Director 
e. City Manager 

VIII. Approval of Previous Minutes 
Special Meeting Minutes February 25, 2024 
Emergency Meeting Minutes March 28, 2024 
Emergency Meeting Minutes April 1, 2024 
Regular Meeting Minutes April 3, 2024 

IX. Public Hearings 
ORDINANCE 2024-11                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Rufener, Stimpert 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING CERTAIN AMENDMENTS TO THE 
APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 
AUTHORIZING THE FINANCE DIRECTOR TO AMEND AND FILE A CERTIFICATE 
OF RESOURCES WITH THE COUNTY AUDITOR 
 
ORDINANCE 2024-14                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Stimpert, Benetis 
AN ORDINANCE REQUESTING THAT THE VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS EXPAND 
THE DUTIES OF THE CLERK OF COUNCIL TO INCLUDE THE DEVELOPMENT OF A 



 Regular Meeting AGENDA, April 17, 2024 | Page 2 of 3 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FOR THE GATHERING AND DISSEMINATION OF PUBLIC 
RECORD 
ORDINANCE 2024-18                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Stimpert, Rufener 
AN ORDINANCE DECLARING CERTAIN VEHICLES & EQUIPMENT OBSOLETE 
USABLE TO THE VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS AND TO DISPOSE OF SAID 
VEHICLES & EQUIPMENT 

X. Unfinished Business 
ORDINANCE 2024-14                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Stimpert, Benetis 
AN ORDINANCE REQUESTING THAT THE VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS EXPAND 
THE DUTIES OF THE CLERK OF COUNCIL TO INCLUDE THE DEVELOPMENT OF A 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FOR THE GATHERING AND DISSEMINATION OF PUBLIC 
RECORDS 
 
ORDINANCE 2024-11                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Rufener, Stimpert 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING CERTAIN AMENDMENTS TO THE 
APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 
AUTHORIZING THE FINANCE DIRECTOR TO AMEND AND FILE A CERTIFICATE 
OF RESOURCES WITH THE COUNTY AUDITOR 
 
ORDINANCE 2024-18                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Stimpert, Rufener 
AN ORDINANCE DECLARING CERTAIN VEHICLES & EQUIPMENT OBSOLETE AND 
NO LONGER USABLE TO THE VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS AND TO DISPOSE OF 
SAID VEHICLES & EQUIPMENT 

XI. New Business 

             ORDINANCE 2024-19       Sponsors: Councilpersons Axiotis, Rufener, Benetis, Persino 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING INTERIM CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO An 
AGREEMENT TO PURCHASE A 2024 FORD F-550 FROM SARCHIONE FORD 
LINCOLN AND UPFITTING EQUIPMENT FOR THE TRUCK FROM QUALITY TRUCK 
BODYFOR USE BY THE MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT 
 
ORDINANCE 2024-20                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Rufener, Stimpert, Axiotis 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 121.01(e) OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES 
RELATING TO THE TIME REQUIRED FOR PUBLIC NOTICE OF SPECIAL COUNCIL 
MEETINGS  
 
ORDINANCE 2024-21                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Rufener, Stimpert, Axiotis 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 121.03(m) OF THE CODIFIED 
ORDINANCES RELATING TO PUBLIC AND CLOSING COMMENTS AT EMERGENCY 
COUNCIL MEETINGS  
 
ORDINANCE 2024-22      Sponsors: Councilpersons Rufener, Stimpert, Benetis, Persino 
AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ACCEPT 
THE PROPOSAL OF OHM ADVISORS FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE 
NEWTON FALLS 2024 PAVING PROGRAM 
 
 
 



 Regular Meeting AGENDA, April 17, 2024 | Page 3 of 3 
 

 
ORDINANCE 2024-23      Sponsors: Councilpersons Rufener, Stimpert, Benetis, Persino 
AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ACCEPT 
THE PROPOSAL OF POLLARD LAND SERVICES FOR EMERGENCY SEWER 
REPLACEMENT INSTALLATION SERVICES FOR WEST RIVER ROAD 

XII. Public Comments 
XIII. Closing Remarks 

a. Mayor  
b. Council Members 
c. Finance Director 
d. Law Director 
e. City Manager 

XIV. Motion to Recess into Executive Session (If Necessary) 
XV. Adjournment 



 

Special Meeting MINUTES, January 25, 2024 | Page 1 of 1 
 

NEWTON FALLS CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
Thursday, January 25, 2024; 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
612 WEST BROAD STREET 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS  CITY ADMINISTRATION 
     
Ward 1 Patricia Benetis  City Manager Pamela Priddy 
Ward 2 Brian Axiotis  Interim Law Director Jeff Limbian 
Ward 3 Brenda Persino  Finance Director Sean Housley 
Ward 4 Kevin Rufener  Clerk of Council Michael Acomb 
At- Large Julie Stimpert    
Mayor David Hanson    

 

This special meeting was called by Julie Stimpert, Vice President of Council on 01/21/24. 

I. Call to Order 
Mayor Hanson called the meeting to order at 6:00pm stating that the meeting was called 
for an emergency situation regarding lawsuits and the intolerable employment situation. 

II. Pledge of Allegiance / Silent Prayer 
III. Roll Call 

Mayor Hanson asked Mr. Acomb to call the roll. 
Council Present: Councilperson Axiotis, Councilperson Benetis, Councilperson Persino 
Councilperson Rufener, Councilperson Stimpert. 
Council Absent: None. 
Staff Present: Interim Law Director Limbian, Clerk Acomb. 
Staff Absent: City Manager Priddy, Finance Director Housley. 

IV. Public Comments (limited to those items on the agenda) 
Brian Kropp – 247 Elizabeth Street 
He stated that no public notice was sent for this meeting. He wanted to know who called 
the meeting. (NOTE: Public notice was issued in a timely manner on January 21, 2024 at 
4:23 pm.) He also wanted to know why Mr. Limbian’s name has been omitted from this 
and previous agendas. 
 
Julie Lemon – 609 Ridge Road 
She asked for an explanation for the purpose of the meeting. She expressed trust in the 
Council and asked for lawsuits to stop. 

V. Old Business 
None 

VI. New Business 
None 

VII. Motion to Recess into Executive Session (if necessary). 
Mayor Hanson called for a Motion to enter into an executive session for the purpose of 
conducting a conference with the Council’s attorney regarding imminent litigation and to 



 

Special Meeting MINUTES, January 25, 2024 | Page 2 of 1 
 

discuss the appointment, employment, dismissal, discipline, and/or compensation of a 
public employee.  

Moved by Mr. Axiotis. Seconded by Ms. Benetis.  
No discussion. 

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. The Council entered executive session at 6:06pm. 
 
Mr. Axiotis made a motion to adjourn the executive session. Seconded by Ms. Stimpert. 

No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. The Council entered executive session at 7:27 pm. 
 
Mr. Axiotis made a motion, pursuant to the termination clause Section 2 of the City 
Manager’s agreement, subsection (b), at will and without cause, to terminate Pam Priddy 
as city manager effective February 26, 2024 with written notice being sent tomorrow, 
January 26, 2024. Further, move to suspend City Manager Pam Priddy with pay for 30 
days effective immediately. Further, that City Manager Pam Priddy be debarred from any 
and all city work, city property, including any computer access. Seconded by Ms. Benetis. 
 No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0.  
 
Ms. Stimpert made a motion to appoint Mike Novotny as Interim City Manager effective 
immediately. Seconded by Mr. Rufener. 

No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0.  

 
Public Comments (limited to those items on the agenda) 
Julie Lemon – 609 Ridge Road 
She spoke in support of Council’s decision regarding the city manager and their ability to 
work together for the best of the community. She thanked Council. 
 
Mr. Zimmermann – 515 LeMae Avenue 
He stated the termination of the city manager was a long time coming. He stated belief 
that things were done incorrectly and against the will of the people for so long. He 
thanked the Council for making a tough decision and expressed optimism for the future. 
He spoke against the city administrator position, and he spoke in favor of the clerk doing 
all the duties that were handled by the previous clerk. 
 
Brian Kropp  
He thanked Council for the action they took tonight.  
 
Rick Kerlin – 1009 Woodglen 
He spoke against the actions that were taken and stated he could not hear the motion 
completely. He spoke about legislative referendums, recalls, etc…. He spoke in support of 
Ms. Priddy. He asked who was terminated because he could not hear all of what was 
said. 
 



 

Special Meeting MINUTES, January 25, 2024 | Page 3 of 1 
 

Mr. Axiotis asked Mayor Hanson for an address. Mayor Hanson permitted the address. 
Mr. Axiotis summarized that the action that was taken by Council against Ms. Priddy. 
 

VIII. Adjournment 
Mayor Hanson called for a motion to adjourn the meeting. Moved by Ms. Stimpert. 
Seconded by Ms. Axiotis. 

No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. The meeting was adjourned at 7:35 pm.  
 

APPROVED: 
              

      ________________________________________ 
                   David Hanson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________________________________ 
Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council 
 



 

Emergency Meeting MINUTES, March 28, 2024 | Page 1 of 4 
 

NEWTON FALLS CITY COUNCIL 
EMERGENCY MEETING MINUTES 
Thursday, March 28, 2024; 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
612 WEST BROAD STREET 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS  CITY ADMINISTRATION 
     
Ward 1 Patricia Benetis  Interim City Manager Mike Novotny 
Ward 2 Brian Axiotis  Law Director Jeff Limbian 
Ward 3 Brenda Persino  Finance Director Sean Housley 
Ward 4 Kevin Rufener  City Clerk Michael Acomb 
At- Large Julie Stimpert    
Mayor David Hanson    

 

I. Call to Order 
Mayor Hanson called the meeting to order at approximately 6:10 pm. 

II. Pledge of Allegiance / Silent Prayer 
III. Roll Call 

Mayor asked for the roll to called. Mr. Novotny called the roll. 
Council Present: Councilperson Axiotis, Councilperson Benetis, Councilperson Persino, 
Councilperson Rufener, Councilperson Stimpert. 
Council Absent: none 
Staff Present: Interim City Manager Novotny, Law Director Limbian. 
Staff Absent: Clerk Acomb. 

IV. New Business 
ORDINANCE 2024-15  Sponsors: Councilperson Stimpert and Rufener 
AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING INTERIM CITY MANAGER TO 
ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH ASSURED PARTNERS THROUGH THE OHIO 
PLAN FOR THE CITY’S PROPERTY AND LIABILITY INSURANCE RENEWAL 
Mayor Hanson read the ordinance by title only. He called for a motion to adopt the 
ordinance. Moved by: Ms. Stimpert. Seconded by Ms. Persino. 

Mr. Novotny explained this the liability renewal that happens every year. Mr. 
Rufener stated that it is due by April 1.  

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was adopted 5-0. First Reading. 
Mayor Hanson read the ordinance by title only. He called for a motion to adopt the 
ordinance. Moved by: Mr. Rufener. Seconded by Ms. Benetis. 
 No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was adopted 5-0. Final Reading. 
 
 
 
 



 

Emergency Meeting MINUTES, March 28, 2024 | Page 2 of 4 
 

ORDINANCE 2023-16  Sponsors: Councilperson Rufener and Stimpert 
AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING INTERIM CITY MANAGER TO PAY 
ASSESSMENT FEE TO OHIO MUNICIPAL JOINT SELF-INSURANCE POOL FOR 
LIABILITY INSURANCE RUN-OUT COVERAGE 

Mayor Hanson read the ordinance by title only. He called for a motion to adopt the 
ordinance. Moved by: Ms. Stimpert. Seconded by Mr. Rufener. 

Mr. Axiotis pointed out that the ordinance number printed on the agenda is 
misprinted as 2023-16. Mr. Novotny stated that the ordinance number is correct 
on the ordinance itself as 2024-16. Mr. Rufener asked for an explanation. Mr. 
Novotny explained that due to the insurance pool that the Village was in during 
the last term, that pool dissolved, and the pool took out an insurance policy to 
cover all outstanding liabilities, current and future. The cost of this insurance 
plan is being spread across all members of the pool. The assessment is based on 
year’s in the pool, current amount of liabilities outstanding, and total amount of 
liabilities that had been incurred over the life of the previous pool policy.  

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was adopted 5-0. First Reading. 

 
Mayor Hanson read the ordinance by title only. He called for a motion to adopt the 
ordinance. Moved by: Mr. Axiotis. Seconded by Ms. Stimpert. 

No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was adopted 5-0. Final Reading. 
 
MOTION      Sponsor: Councilperson Stimpert 
A motion to direct the city manager to take the necessary steps to research the best 
options and recommend to Council a new healthcare benefits insurance policy for the 
employees of the Village of Newton Falls. 

Mayor Hanson read the motion. Moved by: Ms. Stimpert. Seconded by Ms. Benetis. 
Mr. Limbian was provided with an address upon his request. He explained that 
the motion should have a second councilperson as a sponsor. He further 
explained that it would be proper to add a second sponsor tonight. He further 
explained that Council should state for the record the nature of the emergency 
regarding this situation. Her further explained that if the interim city manager 
has current information at his disposal, then he should provide that information 
and council might sponsor and co-sponsor a motion to initiate that due to the 
emergency time constraints that have occurred due to the lack of appropriate 
diligence that has occurred in the last year. He stated that a second emergency 
meeting would not be necessary and everything related to this situation can be 
accomplished tonight. He advised that two motions tonight could authorize the 
city manager to act appropriately. He further advised in response to a question 
from Ms. Stimpert that a co-sponsor for the this motion to be established first 
and then have a second motion if Council pleases. 
 
Mr. Axiotis offered to co-sponsor the main motion. 

No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-
yes; Ms. Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. Mr. Axiotis was added as a second 
sponsor. 

 



 

Emergency Meeting MINUTES, March 28, 2024 | Page 3 of 4 
 

Mr. Rufener asked for the next steps. Mr. Limbian advised the Mr. Novotny should 
explain the nature of the emergency and what he has learned that could move the Village 
forward.  
 
Mr. Novotny asked for recess to retrieve the appropriate information from his office. Mr. 
Rufener made a motion to take a 5-minute recess. Mr. Axiotis asked for an explanation 
regarding the nature of the emergency. Mr. Novotny advised that the Village is up 
against specific dates that pose critical timelines and deadlines. Mr. Rufener restated his 
motion to take a 5-minute recess. Seconded by Ms. Stimpert.  
 No discussion.  
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. A 5-minute recess began at 6:27 pm.  
 
Mr. Rufener made a motion to return from the recess. Seconded by Ms. Stimpert. 
 No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. The meeting resumed at 6:37 pm.  
 
Mr. Novotny provided a document that compares the pertinent information of the 
current health plan and the comparison to Medical Mutual’s MMO Balanced Solutions, 
an underwritten insurance plan. He stated that the current plan is self-funded and 
includes an HRA, deductibles, and stop-gap insurance once a certain level is reached. He 
summarized that the deductibles are comparable and continued to summarize the 
remaining comparisons as Council followed along (enclosed).  He stated that dental, 
vision, and orthodontics will continue to be self-pay through the Village and are not 
relevant to this discussion. For the current plan, per month, the total premium is 
$65,790.36. The proposed plan will have a monthly premium will be $32,187.76. The 
savings will be $33,602.60 per month. The total estimated annual premium will be an 
annual total of $789,484.32 for the current plan versus $386,253.12 for the proposed 
plan. This is an annual savings to the Village of $403,231.20. He explained the HRA 
section.  The current plan bears a total cost to the Village of $1,030,984.32 vs. 
$793,353.12 for the proposed plan. A significant savings can be realized with the 
proposed plan. He further explained the carrier estimates the HRA would be used at 
70%. He stated that a younger workforce is very healthy compared to a few years ago, 
which will be cheaper for the Village than in past years. Mr. Novotny stated that the 
proposed plan is similar to what was previously held several years ago and would be in 
effect from May 1, 2024 – May 1, 2025. He stated that the current plan runs from 
January to January; but his research indicates that a mid-year renews benefits all 
parties. The insurance carriers negotiate far less with clients in January because there 
are so many renewals that come due. The mid-year renewals present an opportunity for 
the carriers to carefully consider different factors and negotiate more freely. Mr. Novotny 
further explained that there are many issues with the current insurance carrier. EOBs 
aren’t being received, employees are being threatened by the carrier with the collection 
process because the administration hasn’t handled the payment process in a timely 
manner. He gave several examples of debit cards being denied. He stated belief that the 
Village must act now to start on May 1 or the whole process begins all over again, 
including employee surveys and the loss of another 60 days to finish that renewal 
process. Further, any additional payments made on the current plan will significantly cut 
any savings to the Village once a new plan is signed into place. Mr. Rufener asked for 



 

Emergency Meeting MINUTES, March 28, 2024 | Page 4 of 4 
 

clarification that every month that passes will cost an additional $33,000. Mr. Novotny 
stated belief that this is an emergency situation to (1) maximize the savings and 
protection of public money and (2) provide the employees with a quality policy that is 
believed to not be plagued with the administrative problems of the current policy. He 
further stated that employees will be transferred to the new policy and will take the 
current status of their deductible with them. Ms. Stimpert stated that she and Mr. 
Novotny have been discussing the situation. She stated belief that this direction is the 
best for the Village and the employees as it provides better coverage for less money. She 
agreed that it is an emergency and warrants action.  
 
Mr. Limbian stated that a second motion can be made to direct the city manager to 
implement a new agreement. Mr. Axiotis reminded Council that a meeting is to be held 
next Wednesday where this could be handled. Mr. Novotny stated belief that waiting for 
that meeting would unnecessarily delay the processing of a new agreement and violate 
the necessary deadlines to get this plan started and the deadline to add something to the 
regular meeting agenda has already passed. Mr. Axiotis conceded; but expressed concern 
with this rushed approach. Mr. Novotny stated that an ordinance must be written and an 
emergency meeting on April 1 will be necessary to pass that legislation effectively. He 
stressed that time is of the essence. Mr. Axiotis agreed that another emergency meeting 
would be best to properly pass a properly written ordinance. Mr. Rufener asked if that 
would be possible. Mr. Novotny said it would be no problem. Mr. Axiotis recommended 
voting on the main motion. Ms. Stimpert asked if waiting until April 1 will hurt the 
Village. Mr. Novotny said action taken on April 1 would be sufficient; but April 3 is not 
available to Council.  
 
Mayor Hanson read the motion again and called for a motion to pass it. Moved by Mr. 
Axiotis. Seconded by Ms. Benetis. 
 No further discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. 

V. Adjournment 
Mayor Hanson called for a motion to adjourn the meeting. Moved by Mr. Axiotis. 
Seconded by Ms. Stimpert. 

No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. The meeting was adjourned at 6:59 pm. 

APPROVED: 
              
       _________________________________________________ 

      David Hanson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________________________________ 
Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council 
 
NOTE: After the meeting adjourned, Mr. Limbian determined that this meeting was not compliant with the 
Newton Falls Charter due to the lack of opportunity for the public to engage in Public Comments. That 
advice means that the votes taken by Council at this meeting were legally invalid. Therefore, at the advice of 
Mr. Limbian, Ms. Stimpert, Vice President of Council called an emergency meeting to be scheduled April 1, 
2024 for the purpose of properly passing emergency legislation with opportunities for public comments.  



Emergency Meeting MINUTES, April 1, 2024 | Page 1 of 1 
 

NEWTON FALLS CITY COUNCIL 
EMERGENCY MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, April 1, 2024; 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
612 WEST BROAD STREET 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS  CITY ADMINISTRATION 
     
Ward 1 Patricia Benetis  Interim City Manager Mike Novotny 
Ward 2 Brian Axiotis  Law Director Jeff Limbian 
Ward 3 Brenda Persino  Finance Director Sean Housley 
Ward 4 Kevin Rufener  City Clerk Michael Acomb 
At- Large Julie Stimpert    
Mayor David Hanson    

 

I. Call to Order 
Ms. Stimpert called the meeting to order at approximately 6:00 pm. 

II. Pledge of Allegiance / Silent Prayer 
III. Roll Call 

Ms. Stimpert asked for the roll to be called. Mr. Novotny called the roll. 
Council Present: Councilperson Axiotis, Councilperson Axiotis, Councilperson Benetis, 
Councilperson Persino, Councilperson Rufener, Councilperson Stimpert. 
Council Absent: Mayor Hanson 
Staff Present: Interim City Manager Novotny,  
Staff Absent: Clerk Acomb, Finance Director Housley, Law Director Limbian. 

IV. Public Comments (Agenda Items Only) 
Rick Kerlin – 1009 Woodglen 
Mr. Kerlin thanked the Council for adding public comments to the agenda. He spoke 
against tonight’s meeting citing the following, (1) the same ordinance numbers are being 
used as the previous emergency meeting. How can you use the same ordinance 
numbers? He recommended that Council make a motion to change the numbers. (2) 
Ordinance 2023-17 is on this agenda. Mr. Kerlin asked for a copy of the ordinance from 
Mr. Novotny and stated that Mr. Novotny had not yet seen the policy that pertains to this 
ordinance. (3) He spoke in support of the city carrying property insurance for the 
community center. (4) He urged the Council to research the courses and learning that 
needs to be done to stay current with the policy. (5) He claimed that this meeting was not 
properly advertised. 
 
Pamela Priddy – 3725 Old Silk Road – Newton Township 
She spoke against Ordinance 2023-17 and claimed there was a typo. She claimed a 
dereliction of duty by the Interim City Manager if he hasn’t seen the proposed policy. She 
asked many questions to Council asking if they understand what they are reading, 
including stop-loss clauses, HSAs (qualified/unqualified), the aggregate levels, etc…. She 
stated belief that they haven’t done their due diligence to properly understand and 
approve the proposed policy. 



Emergency Meeting MINUTES, April 1, 2024 | Page 2 of 1 
 

 
Julie Lemon – 609 Ridge Road 
She spoke to her knowledge of health insurance policies, including HSAs and HRAs. She 
wondered what the actual savings would mean to the City and expressed her trust in the 
Interim City Manager and her distrust of the statements made by the former City 
Manager. She questioned Ms. Priddy association with the current company.  

V. New Business 
ORDINANCE 2024-15  Sponsors: Councilperson Stimpert and Rufener 
AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING INTERIM CITY MANAGER TO 
ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH ASSURED PARTNERS THROUGH THE OHIO 
PLAN FOR THE CITY’S PROPERTY AND LIABILITY INSURANCE RENEWAL 
Ms. Stimpert read the ordinance by title only and called for a motion to adopt the 
ordinance. Moved by Mr. Rufener. Seconded by Ms. Stimpert.  

Mr. Axiotis questioned having this exact ordinance on this agenda when it passed 
two readings at the previous emergency meeting. Ms. Stimpert stated the Mr. 
Limbian advised that tonight’s agenda was appropriate given the issue of the 
previous emergency meeting agenda. Mr. Rufener stated that the previous 
meeting was improper due to the violation of the Charter, which invalidated the 
meeting, and resulted in this emergency meeting’s agenda to ensure that those 
ordinances are passed legally and properly. Ms. Persino stated that belief that the 
previous meeting must have been a violation of the Open Meetings Act. NOTE: 
the previous emergency meeting was properly advertised with public notice given 
to the Council and media as required. The absence of public comments on the 
agenda invalidated the votes taken at the meeting but does not invalidate the 
discussion that took place. Ms. Stimpert explained as much and stated that the 
absence of public comments was unintentional, and Council is trying to correct 
the situation so the public can have its due with regard to public comments.  

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes. Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-no; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was adopted 4-1. First Reading. 
 
Ms. Stimpert read the ordinance by title only and called for a motion to adopt the 
ordinance. Moved by Mr. Rufener. Seconded by Mr. Axiotis.  

No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes. Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-no; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was adopted 4-1. First Reading. 
 
ORDINANCE 2023-16  Sponsors: Councilperson Rufener and Stimpert 
AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING INTERIM CITY MANAGER TO PAY 
ASSESSMENT FEE TO OHIO MUNICIPAL JOINT SELF-INSURANCE POOL FOR 
LIABILITY INSURANCE RUN-OUT COVERAGE 
Ms. Stimpert noted that the ordinance number is a typo and is 2024-16. She read the 
ordinance by title only and called for a motion to adopt the ordinance. Moved by Mr. 
Rufener. Seconded by Mr. Axiotis.  

Ms. Stimpert asked Mr. Novotny to share some information. He stated that the 
previous insurance pool was dissolved, and an additional policy was issued. The 
consultants determined that the members of the dissolved insurance pool would 
shared the assessment paid out.  

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes. Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-abstain; Mr. Rufener-yes; 
Ms. Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was adopted 4-1. First Reading. 



Emergency Meeting MINUTES, April 1, 2024 | Page 3 of 1 
 

 
Ms. Stimpert read the ordinance by title only and called for a motion to adopt the 
ordinance. Moved by Mr. Axiotis. Seconded by Ms. Benetis.  

Ms. Stimpert asked if Ms. Persino needed to give a reason for abstaining and have 
that reason approved by Council. Ms. Persino stated belief that the previous 
meeting was a violation of the Open Meetings Act. She rejects the law director’s 
explanation that tonight’s meeting corrects the misstep made by not offering 
public comments at the previous meeting. Ms. Stimpert made a motion to allow 
Ms. Persino to abstain. Seconded by Mr. Axiotis.  

Mr. Axiotis took no issue with Ms. Persino abstaining. Ms. Stimpert 
agreed. Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes. Ms. Benetis-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; 
Ms. Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 4-0. Ms. Persino’s abstention was 
approved. 

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes. Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-abstain; Mr. Rufener-yes; 
Ms. Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was adopted 4-1. Final Reading. 

Mr. Axiotis made a motion to allow Ms. Persino to abstain. Seconded by 
Ms. Stimpert. No discussion. Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes. Ms. Benetis-
yes;; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 4-0. Ms. 
Persino’s abstention was approved. 

 
ORDINANCE 2023-17  Sponsors: Councilperson Rufener and Stimpert 
AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE ANY NECESSARY CONTRACTS WITH 
MEDICAL MUTUAL OF OHIO TO PROVIDE EMPLOYEE HEALTH CARE INSURANCE 
AND BENEFITS AND WITH ACRISURE GREAT LAKES/BURNHAM & FLOWER TO 
ADMINISTER ASSOCIATED HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT ACCOUNTS FOR VILLAGE 
EMPLOYEES AS SET FORTH HEREIN  
Ms. Stimpert noted that the ordinance number is a typo and is 2024-17. She read the 
ordinance by title only and called for a motion to adopt the ordinance. Moved by Mr. 
Rufener. Seconded by Ms. Stimpert.  

Mr. Axiotis stated concerns in not being provide the actual policy but only the 
comparison sheet from the current policy to the proposed policy. He asked Mr. 
Novotny to explain the situation. He stated that self-funded, stop-gap policy is 
currently held and the proposal is for a fully underwritten policy from Medical 
Mutual. Mr. Axiotis asked if he could see the policy and Mr. Novotny stated that 
it is not available. Ms. Stimpert noted that this presentation of information from 
Mr. Novotny is consistent with the information that was presented at the end of 
last calendar year when the current policy was approved. Mr. Axiotis continued to 
express concern with not being able to see the policy and concern with the truth 
in having to pay a $300,000 penalty. Mr. Novotny stated that his research has 
determined that nothing in writing exists to state that is the case. Mr. Axiotis 
expressed reservations. Mr. Novotny stated that Council can act or not, but a 
policy cannot be presented to them unless the approve this ordinance. Mr. 
Novotny stated that he has requested all documents from WJL and nothing in the 
documents he read cites a penalty payment. Mr. Axiotis stated concern about a 
penalty. Ms. Persino asked if there is a penalty will be assessed if they leave WJL. 
Mr. Novotny repeated, to his knowledge and as a result of his requests and 
research, there appears to be nothing in writing stating that a penalty will be 
assessed for leaving WJL. Ms. Persino asked about the ramifications of no 



Emergency Meeting MINUTES, April 1, 2024 | Page 4 of 1 
 

passing the ordinance. Mr. Novotny stated that the number will change if it has to 
be requoted and surmised that it could cost an additional $2000-$3000 per 
month. Mr. Axiotis stated that Mr. Novotny demonstrate the fullest level of due 
diligence if he is permitted to proceed with full enrollment. Mr. Novotny agreed. 

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes. Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-abstain; Mr. Rufener-yes; 
Ms. Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was adopted 4-1. First Reading. 

Mr. Axiotis made a motion to allow Ms. Persino to abstain. Seconded by 
Mr. Rufener. No discussion. Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes. Ms. Benetis-
yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 4-0. Ms. 
Persino’s abstention was approved on the basis that she does not agree 
with this emergency meeting. 

 
Ms. Stimpert read the ordinance by title only and called for a motion to adopt the 
ordinance. Moved by Ms. Stimpert. Seconded by Mr. Axiotis.  
 No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes. Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-abstain; Mr. Rufener-yes; 
Ms. Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was adopted 4-1. Final Reading. 

Mr. Rufener made a motion to allow Ms. Persino to abstain. Seconded by 
Mr. Axiotis. No discussion. Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes. Ms. Benetis-
yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 4-0. Ms. 
Persino’s abstention was approved on the basis that she does not agree 
with this emergency meeting. 

 
Ms. Persino stated that public notice of this meeting didn’t happen properly. Ms. 
Stimpert encouraged her to speak with Mr. Acomb regarding his timely submissions for 
posting notices to the website and the website manager’s consistent inability to post per 
Mr. Acomb’s request in a timely manner and in accordance with our requirements. She 
stated that Mr. Acomb can present a time-stamped email showing his efforts to comply 
with the requirements. Mr. Novotny stated that a copy of the notice was posted on the 
bulletin board in the main entryway of the municipal center. NOTE: The public notice 
was sent to the members of the Notice List and the media in compliance with the 
requirements. Ms. Persino stated belief that the bulletin board doesn’t seem sufficient 
and she would like things to be corrected. 
 

VI. Public Comments (Agenda Items Only) 
Rick Kerlin – 1009 Woodglen 
He expressed appreciation for Mr. Axiotis sharing his concerns with the health care 
policy. He also expressed concerns with the same ordinance numbers. He urged Council 
to make a motion to do away with ordinances voted on at the previous meeting. He spoke 
against the emergency meeting as a continuance of the previous meeting.  
 
Pamela Priddy  - Newton Township 
She expressed pride in Mr. Persino and shame with Mr. Novotny stating concern that he 
misquoted how much the premium would increase. She expressed concern with the 
liability Council accepted by approving an HRA stating belief that Council will have to set 
aside nearly $7000 per enrolled family to cover the liability. She stated the Council is 
making a mistake. 
 
Julie Lemon – 609 Ridge Road 



Emergency Meeting MINUTES, April 1, 2024 | Page 5 of 1 
 

She spoke in support of the presentation that Mr. Novotny made to Council. She also 
stated that the codified ordinances need to match the Charter and asked for Council to 
correct. She stated that Mr. Kerlin and Ms. Priddy should not be allowed to speak to 
Council the way they did tonight, particularly since Ms. Priddy is believed by many to 
have an inappropriate relationship with WJL that included her time as City Manager.  
 
Unidentified - 342 Oak Knoll Avenue 
He stated the Mr. Novotny is doing an excellent job. He stated belief that they are headed 
in the right direction and that is shown by Ms. Priddy’s attacks.  
 

VII. Adjournment 
Ms. Stimpert called for a motion to adjourn the meeting. Moved by Mr. Rufener. 
Seconded by Ms. Benetis. 

No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. The meeting was adjourned at 6:54 pm. 
 

APPROVED: 
              
        ________________________________________ 

                   David Hanson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________________________________ 
Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council 

 

 

 



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, April 3, 2024 | Page 1 of 6 
 

NEWTON FALLS CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, April 03, 2024; 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
612 WEST BROAD STREET 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS  CITY ADMINISTRATION 
     
Ward 1 Patricia Benetis  Interim City Manager Mike Novotny 
Ward 2 Brian Axiotis  Law Director Jeff Limbian 
Ward 3 Brenda Persino  Finance Director Sean Housley 
Ward 4 Kevin Rufener  Clerk of Council Michael Acomb 
At- Large Julie Stimpert    
Mayor David Hanson    

 

I. Call to Order 
Mayor Hanson called the meeting the order at 6:02 pm. 

II. Pledge of Allegiance / Silent Prayer 
III. Roll Call 

Mayor Hanson asked Mr. Acomb to call the roll. 
Council Present: Councilperson Benetis, Councilperson Axiotis, Councilperson Persino, 
Councilperson Rufener, Councilperson Stimpert. 
Council Absent: none 
Staff Present: Interim City Manager Novotny, Clerk Acomb. 
Staff Absent: Finance Director Housley, Law Director Limbian. 

IV. Changes To Tonight’s Agenda 
None 

V. Special Presentations by Staff Members or Invited Consultant 
None 

VI. Public Comments (Agenda Items Only) 
Rick Kerlin – 1009 Woodglen 
He spoke against Ordinance 2024-10. He asked to see the amendment made to this 
ordinance. He stated that the utilities have been asked for years to provide money to the 
general fund in order to pay their fair share of expenses. He stated that a rate study was 
conducted, and the rate study permitted the superintendents to decide how much they 
needed to run their departments. We stated that Council should not be taking that 
money from the utility departments for the general fund, if they have more than they 
need to run the departments, but rather, should give any extra money back to the 
residents. He stated belief that money cannot legally be taken from the utilities and 
placed in the general fund.  
 

VII. Reports 
a. Mayor – No report 
b. Council Members 



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, April 3, 2024 | Page 2 of 6 
 

i. Ward 1 – The Utility Appeal Meeting was today and she attend it.  
ii. Ward 2 – Planning and Zoning Meeting was held yesterday. Mr. Axiotis 

could not attend. The distillery variance did not pass. 
iii. Ward 3 – March 26 was a Parks and Recreation Meeting. A replacement 

swing will be bought; but they are waiting for more bids. They are pleased 
to be included in the bench project and are working to get more mulch for 
the playgrounds. It was discussed that signs are needed regarding keeping 
pets on leashes. Walkways and the playgrounds have had trouble with 
unleashed pets. She is looking forward to meeting with the administration 
to get those signs made. The Easter Egg went well, and she thanked all 
who participated and contributed to the effort. The hope is that Tiny Tots 
will take over in the future. She thanked all the volunteers and 
participants for braving the weather. The K&K event was excellent also; 
thanks to them. The Eclipse Event will be from 8a-5p. All businesses are 
encouraged to set up a vending table. K&K will also hold an eclipse event. 
The Police Services Committee meeting is tomorrow and open to the 
public.  

iv. Ward 4 – He attended the NF Commerce Association meeting last week. 
Country Club Rehabilitation ill hold a bingo night on the third Thursday 
of every month. April 10 will be the official ribbon cutting ceremony for 
Rehabilitated Materials. There is a new shop in town called Woods and 
Goods. This Friday is the soft opening for 5-4’s Distillery. April 5 is the 
Late Night in the Falls. He encouraged all to come out and spend some 
time.  

v. At-Large – She attended the Easter Egg Hunt and it was great. The 
Eclipse Event will also be great with many vendors. A Fire Board Meeting 
was held, and a part-time officer will be hired. 

c. City Manager – He read from a prepared report (enclosed). Ms. Stimpert made a 
motion to suspend Council rules. 

--- made a motion to suspend rules to allow Jessica Hockings (sp?) to discuss her idea for a 
fundraiser that needs Council’s blessing and is time-sensitive. Seconded by Mr. Axiotis. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. The Council Rules were suspended. 
 Ms. Stimpert stated that Face’s Lounge has a permit and licensing to do what they wish 
to do; but need the blessing of the legislative branch to move forward. Ms. Hocking’s stated that 
Face’s Lounge is seeking approval to have a temporary expansion permit approved for parking 
lot closure on May 18 (Rain Date May 19). She asked for approval at the local level so that she 
can then submit the application and complete the process. Ms. Stimpert explained that this issue 
came to her after the agenda was released and she wanted to avoid unnecessary delays. Mr. 
Axiotis asked if the request is to close the parking lot. Ms. Stimpert said yes for one day. Ms. 
Hockings explained that it will be properly barricaded according to the rules set by the 
Department of Commerce Liquor Control Division. Mr. Rufener asked if it is necessary for the 
council to act on such a request.  Ms. Stimpert conceded that Council did not need to give its 
approval; but she wanted everyone to know that it is happening. Mr. Rufener stated that the city 
manager can handle it. No objections from Council  
Ms. Stimpert made a motion to resume Council Rules. Seconded by Mr. Axiotis.  
 No discussion.  



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, April 3, 2024 | Page 3 of 6 
 

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. The Council Rules were resumed. 

 
VIII. Approval of Previous Minutes 

Regular Meeting Minutes March 20, 2024 
Mayor Hanson called for a motion to approve the Regular Meeting Minutes of March 20, 
2024. Moved by Ms. Stimpert. Seconded by Mr. Rufener. 

No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-abstain; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; 
Ms. Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 4-0. The minutes were approved. 
Ms. Stimpert made a motion to accept Mr. Axiotis’ abstention. Seconded by Ms. Persino. 
 No discussion.  
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-abstain; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; 
Ms. Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 4-0. Mr. Axiotis’ abstention was accepted.  
 

IX. Public Hearings 
ORDINANCE 2024-09                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Persino, Rufener 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF THE 2023 NPP POWER POOL 
PARTICIPANT SCHEDULE WITH AMERICAN MUNICIPAL POWER, INC. (“AMP”) 
No public comments. 
 
ORDINANCE 2024-10 (amended)               Sponsors: Councilpersons Rufener, Stimpert 
AN ORDINANCE RATIFYING AND/OR CONFIRMING THE ADMINISTRATIVE 
OVERHEAD COST ALLOCATIONS TO THE ELECTRIC REVENUE FUND, THE 
WATER REVENUE FUND, THE SEWER REVENUE FUND AND GENERAL FUND 
Rick Kerlin – 1009 Woodglen 
He spoke against the ordinance and reiterated his earlier comments. He asked about the 
amendment again. He stated that the percentages have not been properly explained. He 
stated that this agenda is a violation of the Open Meetings Act because there is no 
information for him or the public to view referring to the agenda that is provided to the 
attendees of the meeting. NOTE: The full agenda with exhibits is posted on the Village 
website. 
 
Tesa Spletzer – 220 Ashlyn Court 
She spoke against Ordinance 2024-10. She stated that Ordinance 2024-09 considered 
the previous rate study that included recommendations for upgrades to the Church 
Street Station. She also spoke against taking money from the utilities, which are in debt, 
and recommended not re-allocating.  
 
Craig Womer – Morrison Avenue 
He stated belief that this happened several years ago and doing it again makes no sense. 
He stated belief that the Council hasn’t discussed this ordinance enough and should not 
vote on it.  
 
ORDINANCE 2024-12                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Rufener, Persino, Benetis 
AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING A POSITION DESCRIPTION FOR THE POSITION OF 
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE FOR THE VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS 



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, April 3, 2024 | Page 4 of 6 
 

No public comments. 
 
ORDINANCE 2024-13                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Stimpert, Persino, Benetis 
AN ORDINANCE REQUESTING THAT THE VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS SEEK 
PROPOSALS FOR A COMPREHENSIVE FORENSIC AUDIT OF THE VILLAGE’S 
FINANCES FOR THE PAST FIVE (5) YEARS. 
No public comments. 
 

X. Unfinished Business 
ORDINANCE 2024-09                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Persino, Rufener 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF THE 2023 NPP POWER POOL 
PARTICIPANT SCHEDULE WITH AMERICAN MUNICIPAL POWER, INC. (“AMP”) 
Mayor Hanson called for a motion to adopt the ordinance. Moved by Ms. Stimpert. 
Seconded by Mr. Rufener. 

No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was adopted 5-0. Final Reading. 
 
ORDINANCE 2024-10 (amended)               Sponsors: Councilpersons Rufener, Stimpert 
AN ORDINANCE RATIFYING AND/OR CONFIRMING THE ADMINISTRATIVE 
OVERHEAD COST ALLOCATIONS TO THE ELECTRIC REVENUE FUND, THE 
WATER REVENUE FUND, THE SEWER REVENUE FUND AND GENERAL FUND  
Mayor Hanson called for a motion to adopt the ordinance. Moved by Ms. Stimpert. 
Seconded by Mr. Rufener. 

Mr. Rufener explained that this was discussed on March 20 and it was amended 
to remove the emergency clause. He stated that the Exhibit seen tonight is the 
same as March 20. He explained that these departments do not generate their 
own revenue or self-sustain. This action of reallocating is done every year and not 
a new action. Allocations are reviewed annually by the Finance Director and 
recommended to Council to adjust how much is taken against the general fund 
and utility funds. He spoke against the misinformation and propaganda in the 
community. He stated that electric rates have dropped by 2%, and those rates will 
not go up. He explained that $4.88 per household per year are the increases for 
water.  Sewer will be $7.66 per household per year. Overall, per year, the 
increases due to the reallocation amount to $15 per year per household. He 
expressed disbelief that people are struggling to understand an action that takes 
place every year and resulted in a mere $15 per year increase. This action will not 
drive elevated rates but is required for those departments so they can function 
properly. Ms. Stimpert statement agreement and noted that the finance director 
did a special presentation previously to explain everything fully to the Council 
and the Public and the exhibits are in tonight’s packet that was provided to the 
public. 

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was adopted 5-0. Final Reading. 
 
ORDINANCE 2024-12                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Rufener, Persino, Benetis 
AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING A POSITION DESCRIPTION FOR THE POSITION OF 
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE FOR THE VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS 



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, April 3, 2024 | Page 5 of 6 
 

Mayor Hanson called for a motion to adopt the ordinance. Moved by Ms. Benetis. 
Seconded by Mr. Axiotis. 

No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was adopted 5-0. Final Reading. 
 
ORDINANCE 2024-13                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Stimpert, Persino, Benetis 
AN ORDINANCE REQUESTING THAT THE VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS SEEK 
PROPOSALS FOR A COMPREHENSIVE FORENSIC AUDIT OF THE VILLAGE’S 
FINANCES FOR THE PAST FIVE (5) YEARS. 
Mayor Hanson called for a motion to adopt the ordinance. Moved by Ms. Stimpert. 
Seconded by Mr. Rufener. 

Ms. Stimpert reiterated that this ordinance is intended to allow the Village to 
seek proposals on which Council may or may not act once they are received.  

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was adopted 5-0. Final Reading. 
 
ORDINANCE 2024-14                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Stimpert, Benetis 
AN ORDINANCE REQUESTING THAT THE VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS EXPAND 
THE DUTIES OF THE CLERK OF COUNCIL TO INCLUDE THE DEVELOPMENT OF A 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FOR THE GATHERING AND DISSEMINATION OF PUBLIC 
RECORDS 
Mayor Hanson called for a motion to adopt the ordinance. Moved by Mr. Axiotis. 
Seconded by Ms. Benetis. 

Mr. Axiotis stated that currently there is a problem with staff turnover and the 
Village not being as organized or timely as they should be in how public records 
requests are being received and fulfilled.  
Mr. Rufener made a motion to amend the ordinance to remove Section 2. 
Seconded by Ms. Stimpert.  

Mr. Rufener stated that this ordinance, as written, offers two separate 
appropriations: one for the expansion of clerk duties and a second for 
hiring a part-time assistant. He stated belief that separating each into 
their own ordinance would be a better handling of the appropriations.  

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-
yes; Ms. Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was amended 5-0. 

Mr. Axiotis made a motion to adopt the ordinance as amended. Seconded by Ms. Benetis. 
 No further discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was adopted 5-0. Second Reading. A public hearing and 
Final Reading will occur on April 17, 2024.  
 

XI. New Business 
ORDINANCE 2024-11                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Rufener, Stimpert 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING CERTAIN AMENDMENTS TO THE 
APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 
AUTHORIZING THE FINANCE DIRECTOR TO AMEND AND FILE A CERTIFICATE 
OF RESOURCES WITH THE COUNTY AUDITOR 



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, April 3, 2024 | Page 6 of 6 
 

Mayor Hanson called for a motion to adopt the ordinance. Moved by Mr. Rufener. 
Seconded by Ms. Stimpert. 

Mr. Rufener spoke in support of the ordinance. He explained how to read the 
exhibit, including what Personal Services means, which are pay and fringe 
benefits. These are required expenses that include OPERS, Medicare, BWC, etc…. 
The exhibit tonight shows the increases that were approved for the utility 
department wages, crew chiefs, etc…. Other Operations includes the insurance 
assessment, capital improvements, cost allocations, etc…. This allocates the 
money; it doesn’t spend the money.  He encouraged any interested people to take 
their time to read and think about it and to contact the Village for further 
explanations. He reminded that he also provided a lengthy explanation at  
previous meetings where each of these line items were referred to as “buckets”. 
He acknowledge that the concept can seem complicated; but it can be learned 
with time and effort. Mr. Rufener has spent significant amounts of time with the 
finance director to be able to provide these explanations.  

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was adopted 5-0. First Reading. 
 
ORDINANCE 2024-18                      Sponsors: Councilpersons Stimpert, Rufener 
AN ORDINANCE DECLARING CERTAIN VEHICLES & EQUIPMENT OBSOLETE AND 
NO LONGER USABLE TO THE VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS AND TO DISPOSE OF 
SAID VEHICLES & EQUIPMENT 
Mayor Hanson called for a motion to adopt the ordinance. Moved by Ms. Stimpert. 
Seconded by Mr. Axiotis. 

Ms. Stimpert stated that the ordinance title on the agenda is missing a few words; 
but the title on the actual ordinance in the packet is correct. Mr. Axiotis stated 
that the funds received from this auction style sale will be placed back into the 
fund in which they originated, according to his conversation with the finance 
director. 

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The ordinance was adopted 5-0. First Reading. 
 

XII. Public Comments 
Pamela Priddy – She addressed the Chair and requested that she would like the Village 
reimburse her $15 due to the new cost allocations rather than have it be part of the new 
allocations for the Village. She stated that she does not understand how a closed business 
has to pay $140-160 per month in utilities each month. 

XIII. Closing Remarks 
a. Mayor  - No remarks. 
b. Council Members 

i. Ward 1 – No remarks. 
ii. Ward 2 – Mr. Axiotis stated that the law director is on vacation that was 

pre-scheduled prior to his hiring. He also encouraged Ms. Priddy, a 
former city manager, that she should reach out to the Finance Director so 
that she can have him explain the utility bills to her. He also stated belief 
from experience that various utilities seem to charge a monthly service fee 
for active accounts, regardless of usage. He encouraged Ms. Priddy to 
determine if that is happening with her accounts.. 



 

 Regular Meeting MINUTES, April 3, 2024 | Page 7 of 6 
 

iii. Ward 3 – No remarks. 
iv. Ward 4 –No remarks. 
v. At-Large – No remarks. 

c. City Manager – No remarks. 
XIV. Motion to Recess into Executive Session (If Necessary) 

Mayor Hanson called for a motion to enter executive session. No motion was made. 
XV. Adjournment 

Mayor Hanson called for a motion to adjourn the meeting. Moved by Mr. Axiotis. 
Seconded by Ms. Benetis. 

No discussion. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Axiotis-yes; Ms. Benetis-yes; Ms. Persino-yes; Mr. Rufener-yes; Ms. 
Stimpert-yes. The motion passed 5-0. The meeting was adjourned at 7:00 pm. 

 

APPROVED: 
              
        ________________________________________ 
                                David Hanson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________________________________ 
Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council 

 



VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO 
ORDINANCE NO.: 2024-11 
SPONSOR: Councilpersons Rufener, Stimpert 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING CERTAIN AMENDMENTS TO THE 
APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 
AUTHORIZING THE FINANCE DIRECTOR TO AMEND AND FILE A CERTIFICATE 

OF RESOURCES WITH THE COUNTY AUDITOR 
 

 WHEREAS, as a result of certain occurrences, information, and expenditures, 
amendments to the Year 2024 Appropriations and transfers of items already 
appropriated for the Year 2024 are desired and required; and 
  

WHEREAS, this Ordinance incorporates funding sources and expenditures that 
originated after the most recent Certificate of Resources was issued; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the appropriation amendments authorizes an update of the 
Certificate of Resources to be filed with the Trumbull County Auditor. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Newton Falls, State of Ohio, 
hereby ordains: 
 

SECTION 1.  That the Exhibit attached hereto hereby amends the current 
appropriations for fiscal year 2024. Any funds not listed in this exhibit shall remain intact 
as previously listed and appropriated. 
 

SECTION 2. That the Village Finance Director is hereby authorized to draw 
warrants on the Village Treasury for payment of the foregoing appropriations upon 
receiving proper certification and vouchers thereof, and no salaries or wages shall be 
paid except to persons employed by authority of and in accordance with law or 
ordinance. 
 

SECTION 3. That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council 
concerning and relating to the adoption of this Ordinance were adopted in an open 
meeting of this Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its 
committees that resulted in such formal action were in meetings open to the public, in 
compliance with all legal requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised 
Code.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2024-11 
PAGE TWO 
 
 SECTION 4.  That this Ordinance shall be effective as of the earliest date 
permitted by law. 
 

PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS _____ DAY OF _______________, 2024. 
 
 
  
      _____________________________________ 

David Hanson, Mayor 
 
 
 Attest:     _____________________________________  

Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council  
 

Approved as to Legal Form. 
      _____________________________________ 
      Jeff Limbian, Law Director 
  
  



2024 APPROPRIATIONS, EXHIBIT A
Page 1 of 5  

2024 2024
2024 Appropriations: Current Proposed
CITY OF NEWTON FALLS Appropriations Appropriations Difference

100 General Fund
POLICE
Personal Services Legal Level 81,348.37               81,348.37          -                      
Other Operations Legal Level 467,495.20             473,715.74        6,220.54             

Total: 548,843.57             555,064.11        6,220.54             
Police Support
Personal Services Legal Level -                          -                     -                      
Other Operations Legal Level -                          -                     -                      

Total: -                          -                     -                      
FIRE
Other Operations Legal Level 77,490.00               77,490.00          -                      

Total: 77,490.00               77,490.00          -                      
ZONING
Personal Services Legal Level 64,983.00               64,983.00          -                      
Other Operations Legal Level 44,918.00               45,510.97          592.97                

Total: 109,901.00             110,493.97        592.97                
GENERAL ADMINISTRATION
Personal Services Legal Level -                          -                     -                      
Other Operations Legal Level -                          -                     -                      

Total: -                          -                     -                      
CITY ADMINISTRATION
Personal Services Legal Level 47,431.74               47,431.74          -                      
Other Operations Legal Level 74,267.37               74,525.87          258.50                

Total: 121,699.11             121,957.61        258.50                
Council
Personal Services Legal Level 9,470.42 9,470.42            -                      
Other Operations Legal Level 8,857.23 8,894.46            37.23                  

Total: 18,327.65               18,364.88          37.23                  
MUNICIPAL COURT
Personal Services Legal Level 708,137.63 708,137.63        -                      
Other Operations Legal Level 32,484.00 38,082.96          5,598.96             

Total: 740,621.63             746,220.59        5,598.96             
FINANCE
Personal Services Legal Level 79,656.87               81,787.33          2,130.46             
Other Operations Legal Level 33,034.28               33,201.53          167.25                

Total: 112,691.15             114,988.86        2,297.71             
BOARDS & COMMISSIONS
Personal Services Legal Level 701.76                    701.76               -                      
Other Operations Legal Level 300.00 300.00               -                      

Total: 1,001.76                 1,001.76            -                      
LAW
Personal Services Legal Level 77,293.42               77,293.42          -                      
Other Operations Legal Level 28,140.06 28,369.88          229.82                

Total: 105,433.48             105,663.30        229.82                
BUILDING & LANDS, MAINTENANCE
Personal Services Legal Level 34,455.67               34,455.67          -                      
Other Operations Legal Level 479,060.02 481,026.50        1,966.48             

Total: 513,515.69             515,482.17        1,966.48             
DEBT / TRANSFERS & ADVANCES
Other Operations Legal Level 104,006.30             104,006.30        -                      

Total: 104,006.30             104,006.30        -                      
100 Total: 2,453,531.34         2,470,733.55     17,202.21           

Appropriations Amendment 01



2024 APPROPRIATIONS, EXHIBIT A
Page 2 of 5  

2024 2024
2024 Appropriations: Current Proposed
CITY OF NEWTON FALLS Appropriations Appropriations Difference

101 GENERAL FUND RESERV
Other Operations Legal Level -                          -                     -                      
101 Total: -                          -                     -                      

201 STREET CMR
Personal Services Legal Level 366,450.89             373,169.03        6,718.14             
Other Operations Legal Level 66,273.61               69,657.79          3,384.18             
201 Total: 432,724.50             442,826.82        10,102.32           

202 STATE HIGHWAY IMPRO
Other Operations Legal Level 7,100.00                 7,100.00            -                      
202 Total: 7,100.00                 7,100.00            -                      

203 PERMISSIVE AUTO
Other Operations Legal Level 45,600.00               45,600.00          -                      
203 Total: 45,600.00               45,600.00          -                      

204 PARK AND RECREATION
Personal Services Legal Level 1,870.00                 1,870.00            -                      
Other Operations Legal Level 12,107.68               12,107.68          -                      
204 Total: 13,977.68               13,977.68          -                      

204 PARK AND RECREATION / Community Center
Personal Services Legal Level -                          -                     -                      
Other Operations Legal Level -                          -                     -                      
204 Total: -                          -                     -                      

208 DRUG LAW ENFORCEMEN
Other Operations Legal Level -                          -                     -                      
208 Total: -                          -                     -                      

213 COMMUNITY SERVICES AND ACTIVITIES
Other Operations Legal Level 1,700.00                 1,700.00            -                      
213 Total: 1,700.00                 1,700.00            -                      

214 SR CITIZEN VAN
Personal Services Legal Level -                          -                     -                      
Other Operations Legal Level -                          -                     -                      
214 Total: -                          -                     -                      

215 INDIGENT DRIVERS
Other Operations Legal Level 2,500.00                 2,500.00            -                      
215 Total: 2,500.00                 2,500.00            -                      

216 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMEN
Personal Services Legal Level -                          -                     -                      
Other Operations Legal Level -                          -                     -                      
216 Total: -                          -                     -                      

217 ECONOMIC/HILP

Appropriations Amendment 01



2024 APPROPRIATIONS, EXHIBIT A
Page 3 of 5  

2024 2024
2024 Appropriations: Current Proposed
CITY OF NEWTON FALLS Appropriations Appropriations Difference

Other Operations Legal Level 26,000.00               26,000.00          -                      
217 Total: 26,000.00               26,000.00          -                      

217 HOME IMPROVEMENT LOAN
Other Operations Legal Level -                          -                     -                      
217 Total: -                          -                     -                      

218 LAW LIBRARY
Other Operations Legal Level 15,000.00               15,000.00          -                      
218 Total: 15,000.00               15,000.00          -                      

219 ENFORCEMENT AND EDU
Other Operations Legal Level 8,500.00                 8,500.00            -                      
219 Total: 8,500.00                 8,500.00            -                      

220 SPECIAL LEVY POLICE
Personal Services Legal Level 16,474.00               16,474.00          -                      
Other Operations Legal Level 622.00                    622.00               -                      
220 Total: 17,096.00               17,096.00          -                      

221 INCOME TAX
Personal Services Legal Level 1,950.00                 1,950.00            -                      
Other Operations Legal Level 1,288,894.62         1,288,894.62     -                      
221 Total: 1,290,844.62         1,290,844.62     -                      

222 COURT COMPUTERIZATI
Other Operations Legal Level 250,000.00             250,000.00        -                      
222 Total: 250,000.00             250,000.00        -                      

223 COURT GENERAL SPECI
Personal Services Legal Level 135,546.00             135,546.00        -                      
Other Operations Legal Level 36,000.00               36,000.00          -                      
223 Total: 171,546.00             171,546.00        -                      

224 COURT SECURITY/DIVE
Personal Services Legal Level -                          -                     -                      
Other Operations Legal Level -                          -                     -                      
224 Total: -                          -                     -                      

225 INDIGENT DRIVERS AL
Other Operations Legal Level 11,070.00               11,070.00          -                      
225 Total: 11,070.00               11,070.00          -                      

234 ONE OHIO OPIOID SET
Personal Services Legal Level -                          -                     -                      
Other Operations Legal Level 3,155.00                 3,155.00            -                      
233 Total: 3,155.00                 3,155.00            -                      

400 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
Other Operations Legal Level 64,688.97               64,688.97          -                      
400 Total: 64,688.97               64,688.97          -                      

Appropriations Amendment 01



2024 APPROPRIATIONS, EXHIBIT A
Page 4 of 5  

2024 2024
2024 Appropriations: Current Proposed
CITY OF NEWTON FALLS Appropriations Appropriations Difference

410 AMI METERING PROJECT
Other Operations Legal Level 150,000.00             774,740.64        624,740.64         
410 Total: 150,000.00             774,740.64        624,740.64         

501 WATER OPERATING
Personal Services Legal Level 507,349.99             529,010.65        21,660.66           
Other Operations Legal Level 886,491.41             905,137.88        18,646.47           
501 Total (Water Operating): 1,393,841.40         1,434,148.53     40,307.13           

501 WATER DISTRIBUTION
Personal Services Legal Level 476,588.57             504,967.37        28,378.80           
Other Operations Legal Level 422,447.41             448,905.49        26,458.08           
501 Total (Water Distribution): 899,035.98             953,872.86        54,836.88           

502 SEWER OPERATING
Personal Services Legal Level 569,841.70             600,945.03        31,103.33           
Other Operations Legal Level 3,455,663.83         3,476,528.52     20,864.69           
502 Total: 4,025,505.53         4,077,473.55     51,968.02           

503 ELECTRIC OPERATING
Personal Services Legal Level 721,669.50             724,601.22        2,931.72             
Other Operations Legal Level 5,433,661.20         5,475,230.24     41,569.04           
503 Total: 6,155,330.70         6,199,831.46     44,500.76           

504 STORMWATER OPERATING
Other Operations Legal Level 73,284.32               73,284.32          -                      
504 Total: 73,284.32               73,284.32          -                      

508 GUARANTEE TRUST
Other Operations Legal Level 40,280.00               40,280.00          -                      
508 Total: 40,280.00               40,280.00          -                      

510 REFUSE
Other Operations Legal Level 444,000.00             444,000.00        -                      
510 Total: 444,000.00             444,000.00        -                      

514 UTILITY OFFICE
Personal Services Legal Level 143,589.39             158,857.89        15,268.50           
Other Operations Legal Level 100,100.00             102,017.03        1,917.03             
514 Total: 243,689.39             260,874.92        17,185.53           

516 SEWER DEBT
Other Operations Legal Level 360,295.04             360,295.04        -                      
516 Total: 360,295.04             360,295.04        -                      

517 ELECTRIC DEBT
Other Operations Legal Level 147,364.00             147,364.00        -                      
517 Total: 147,364.00             147,364.00        -                      

519 WATER DEBT SERVICE

Appropriations Amendment 01



2024 APPROPRIATIONS, EXHIBIT A
Page 5 of 5  

2024 2024
2024 Appropriations: Current Proposed
CITY OF NEWTON FALLS Appropriations Appropriations Difference

Other Operations Legal Level 141,150.74             141,150.74        -                      
519 Total: 141,150.74             141,150.74        -                      

520 SEWER RESERVE
Other Operations Legal Level -                          -                     -                      
520 Total: -                          -                     -                      

521 DEBT RETIRE 2020 BON
Other Operations Legal Level 237,056.00             237,056.00        -                      
521 Total: 237,056.00             237,056.00        -                      

602 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Other Operations Legal Level 1,125,377.00         1,125,377.00     -                      
602 Total: 1,125,377.00         1,125,377.00     -                      

705 TRUMBULL COUNTY CAPI
Other Operations Legal Level 12,178.00               12,178.00          -                      
705 Total: 12,178.00               12,178.00          -                      

709 FLOWER FUND
Other Operations Legal Level 5,826.00                 5,826.00            -                      
709 Total: 5,826.00                 5,826.00            -                      

710 BASKETBALL HOOP FUND
Other Operations Legal Level -                          -                     -                      
710 Total: -                          -                     -                      

711 FIRE/TWNSP FUEL
Other Operations Legal Level 53,756.00               53,756.00          -                      
711 Total: 53,756.00               53,756.00          -                      

Grand Total: 20,323,004.21 21,183,847.70 860,843.49

Appropriations Amendment 01



 
 

   
VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO 
ORDINANCE NO.: 2024-14 (amended) 
SPONSOR: Councilpersons Stimpert, Benetis 

 
AN ORDINANCE REQUESTING THAT THE VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS EXPAND 
THE DUTIES OF THE CLERK OF COUNCIL TO INCLUDE THE DEVELOPMENT OF 

A COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FOR THE GATHERING AND DISSEMINATION OF 
PUBLIC RECORDS 

 
  WHEREAS, The Village receives an ever increasing number of requests for public 
records and desires to insure that the Village is in strict compliance with Ohio’s Sunshine 
Laws and timely dissemination of public records; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Council recognizes that in order to effectively provide timely and 
complete dissemination of public records, the Village requires a designated staff member to 
coordinate the gathering of information and the development of a process that can be 
followed as the need for transparency is a paramount consideration for the Village; 
 
 WHEREAS, Council further recognizes that sound protocols to ensure a proper work 
flow for the acknowledgement of public records requests, the collection of documents, 
review and redaction of information not subject to release, fulfillment or denials of requests 
as required by Ohio Sunshine Laws to maintain an appropriate level of service to the 
citizens of Newton Falls; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Village Council desires to develop standard, professional 
communications for the acknowledgement, fulfillment, status updates, and when 
necessary, denials, of public records requests, develop protocols, including visitation logs 
for citizen review of in-person review of records if requested, establish a plan for timely 
email communication, obtain necessary AI driven software that can expedite public record 
requests, and monitor and adhere to Ohio records retention laws; 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to manage and implement this public records process, the Clerk 
of Council is best situated to administer this process and should be compensated for the 
additional work;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Newton Falls, State of Ohio, 
hereby ordains: 

 
SECTION 1.  That the Village of Newton Falls ordains to increase the salary of the  

City Clerk / Clerk of Council from $25,000.00 to $37,500.00 with no benefits, amounting to 
an increase of $12,500.00 per year based on a rate of $24.00 per hour. 
 

SECTION 2.  That all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the 
adoption of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and all 
deliberations of this Council or any of its committees that resulted in such formal action 



 
 

were taken in meetings open to the public and/or in compliance with all legal requirements, 
including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 
 SECTION 3.  That this Ordinance shall be effective as of the earliest date permitted 
by law. 

 
PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS _____ DAY OF _______________, 2024. 

 
 
      ____________________________________ 

David Hanson, Mayor 
 
 
Attest:      _____________________________________  

Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council  
 
Approved as to Legal Form. 

      _____________________________________ 
      Jeff Limbian, Law Director 
  

 



 
 

   
VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO 
ORDINANCE NO.: 2024-18 
SPONSOR: Councilpersons Stimpert and Rufener 

 
AN ORDINANCE DECLARING CERTAIN VEHICLES & EQUIPMENT OBSOLETE 

AND NO LONGER USABLE TO THE VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS AND TO 
DISPOSE OF VEHICLES & EQUIPMENT AS SET FORTH HEREIN 

 
WHEREAS, the Council of the Village of Newton Falls (“the Council”) has recognized 

that there are vehicles & equipment owned by the Village that are obsolete and no longer of 
any use for Village operations; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Council recognizes the need to dispose of obsolete and unusable 
vehicles & equipment; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Council further recognizes the need to create a Disposal List to 
dispose of obsolete unusable vehicles & equipment; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Council recognizes Exhibit A to be the disposal list created by the 
Interim City Manager and wishes to dispose of items listed and recommended by the 
Interim City Manager for disposal; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Newton Falls, State of Ohio, 
hereby ordains: 

 
SECTION 1.  That the Council declares the items listed in Exhibit A - Disposal List 

04/01/24 as obsolete and unusable to the Village of Newton Falls.  
 
SECTION 2.   That the Village Council directs the Interim City Manager to dispose of 

the items listed in Exhibit A to the highest bidder by public auction on GovDeals.com 
 
SECTION 2.  That all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the 

adoption of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and all 
deliberations of this Council or any of its committees that resulted in such formal action 
were taken in meetings open to the public and/or in compliance with all legal requirements, 
including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 
 SECTION 3.  That this Ordinance shall be effective as of the earliest date permitted 
by law. 

 
 

 
 
 
ORDINANCE NO.: 2024-18 



 
 

PAGE TWO 
 
 
PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS _____ DAY OF _______________, 2024. 

 
       
 

____________________________________ 
David Hanson, Mayor 

            
Attest:            

      _____________________________________  
Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council  

 
 
Approved as to Legal Form. 

      _____________________________________ 
      Jeff Limbian, Law Director 
  

 



 Disposal List 
 04/01/2024 
 

ORD 2024-18       Exhibit A      Page 1 of 1  

 

1993 Interna�onal Dump Truck – Street Department 

VIN # 1HTSDPPN8PH465163 

 

2003 Elgin Street Sweeper – Street Department 

VIN # 49HAADBV23DK98869 

 

Ford 550 TLB w/ Rops Cab & Misc. Buckets – Wastewater Department 

Tractor # C563771      City of NF # 000198   Rops S/N 30085-1 



 
 

   
VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO 
ORDINANCE NO.: 2024-19 
SPONSOR: Councilpersons Axiotis, Rufener, Benetis, Persino 

 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING INTERIM CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO An 
AGREEMENT TO PURCHASE A 2024 FORD F-550 FROM SARCHIONE FORD 

LINCOLN AND UPFITTING EQUIPMENT FOR THE TRUCK FROM QUALITY TRUCK 
BODYFOR USE BY THE MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT 

 
 WHEREAS, in order to properly serve the Village residents and property owners, 
the Maintenance Department desires to purchase a new dump truck to replace a 27-year-
old dump truck that is currently serving as the Department's primary vehicle; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Maintenance Department Supervisor and Interim City Manager 
investigated options for purchasing a new upfitted truck; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 9.17, formal advertisement 
and bidding are not required if a purchase is for less than $75,000; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Village Council desires to take advantage of the quote provided by 
Sarchione Ford Lincoln of Alliance, Ohio because the price of the truck is less than 
$75,000 and also less than the price for a similar truck under the State’s Cooperative 
Purchasing Program and also has been determined by the Interim City Manager to be 
the most beneficial price on the purchase of a new 2024 Ford F-550 truck; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Village Council intends to also upfit the new 2024 Ford F-550 truck with 
a Stainless-Steel dump bed, plow system, salt spreader, and other equipment through 
Quality Truck Body of Youngstown, Ohio; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Village Council intends to finance the purchase of the new 2024 Ford  
F-550 Truck with all upfitted equipment through Ford Credit Municipal Finance for a term of 
5 years. 
 
 WHEREAS, Council has approved these expenditures in the Village’s 2024 
Budget 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Newton Falls, State of Ohio, 
hereby ordains: 

 
SECTION 1.  That Council hereby and herein authorizes the Interim City 

Manager to enter into an agreement to purchase a new 2024 Ford F-550 truck from 
Sarchione Ford Lincoln of Alliance, Ohio for $72,730.00 as set forth in the attached 
quotation; 

 
ORDINANCE NO.: 2024-19 



 
 

PAGE TWO 
 
  SECTION 2.  The Council also hereby and herein authorizes the Interim City 
Manager to enter into an agreement to have the same, new 2024 Ford F-550 truck from 
Sarchione Ford Lincoln of Alliance, Ohio upfitted with a Stainless-Steel Dump Bed, plow 
system, salt spreader, and other equipment by Quality Truck Body of Youngstown, as  
set forth in the attached quotations, for a separate and total amount of $59,998.00, 
pursuant to the State of Ohio Department of Transportation specifications. 
 
   SECTION 3.  The Council also hereby and herein authorizes the Interim City 
Manager to enter into an agreement with Ford Credit Municipal Financing to have the 
same, new 2024 Ford F-550 truck from Sarchione Ford Lincoln of Alliance, Ohio upfitted 
with a Stainless-Steel Dump Bed, plow system, salt spreader, and other equipment by 
Quality Truck Body of Youngstown, financed for a term of 5 years as set forth in the 
attached quotation, with an annual payment of $31,376.39 
 
 SECTION 4.  That all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the 
adoption of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and all 
deliberations of this Council or any of its committees that resulted in such formal action 
were taken in meetings open to the public and/or in compliance with all legal 
requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 
 SECTION 4.  That this Ordinance shall be effective as of the earliest date permitted 
by law. 
 

 
 
 
 
PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS _____ DAY OF _______________, 2024. 

 
 
      ____________________________________ 

David Hanson, Mayor 
 
 
           Attest:     _____________________________________  

Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council  
 
Approved as to Legal Form. 

      _____________________________________ 
      Jeff Limbian, Law Director 
  



Ford Motor Credit Company ("FMCC") is providing the information contained in this document for discussion purposes only in connection with a proposed arm's 
length commercial leasing transaction between you and FMCC. FMCC is acting for its own interest and has financial and other interests that differ from yours. FMCC 
is not acting as a municipal advisor or financial advisor to you, and has no fiduciary duty to you. The information provided in this document is not intended to be and 
should not be construed as "advice" within the meaning of Section 15B of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the municipal advisor rules of the SEC. FMCC is 
not recommending that you take an action and you should discuss any actions with your own advisors as you deem appropriate.

Financing Quote # 103562

March 26, 2024

Municipality: City of Newton Falls
Dealer: Sarchione Ford of Alliance

          
Ford Credit Municipal Finance is pleased to provide the following quote for your consideration. 
Expiration Date: 5/25/2024

VEHICLE INFORMATION

Description Unit Price
 Truck with Dump body, Plow & Spreader $132,728.00

COST INFORMATION

Total Asset Cost Underwriting Fee Amount Financed
$132,728.00 $545.00 $133,273.00

FINANCING OPTIONS

Number of Payments Payment Timing Rate Payment Amount
4 Annual 8.89% $37,687.50
5 Annual 8.89% $31,376.39

This quote was prepared assuming the lease qualifies for Federal Income Tax Status for Ford Credit Company LLC under Section 
103 of the IRS Code and is not a commitment by Ford Credit Municipal Finance.  Financing is subject to credit review.  

Thank you for the opportunity to provide this quote.  If you have any questions, need additional options, or would like to proceed with 
the application process, please contact by using the information below.  

Sincerely,

Janet Doty

Janet Doty
Marketing Coordinator
jdoty@ford.com
1-800-241-4199, press 1

1 American Road, MD 7500
Dearborn, Michigan 48126
1-800-241-4199, press 1























VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO 
ORDINANCE NO.: 2024-20  
SPONSOR: Councilpersons Rufener, Stimpert, Axiotis 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 121.01(e) OF THE CODIFIED 
ORDINANCES RELATING TO THE TIME REQUIRED FOR PUBLIC NOTICE OF 

SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETINGS  
 
WHEREAS, Council desires to amend Sections 121.01(e) of the Codified Ordinances 
relating to the time required for public notice of Special Council Meetings in order to 
make the language of this section conform to Article III, Section 7. SPECIAL MEETINGS 
of the Charter.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Newton Falls, State of Ohio, hereby 
ordains:  
 
SECTION 1. That Sections 121.01(e) of the Village Administrative Code is hereby 
amended as set forth in the attachment hereto that is incorporated herein by reference.  
 
SECTION 2. That all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the 
adoption of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and all 
deliberations of this Council or any of its committees that resulted in such formal action 
were taken in meetings open to the public and/or in compliance with all legal 
requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.  
 
SECTION 3. That this Ordinance shall be effective as of the earliest date permitted by 
law.  
 

PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS ___TH DAY OF _______, 2024. 
 

 
________________________________  
David Hanson, Mayor 
 

Attest:                 ________________________________ 
Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council  
 

Approved as to Legal Form.   _______________________________ 
Jeff Limbian, Law Director 
 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE 2024 – 20  Exhibit A  Page 1 of 1 
 
 

 
121.01 MEETINGS. 
  (e)   Special Meetings. Special meetings may be called by the Mayor, Vice-President 
of Council or any two members of Council. There shall be given at least twenty-four 
seventy-two hours notice in writing of such special meeting, served personally on each 
member of Council or at his usual place of residence. Such notice shall state the subject 
or subjects to be considered at the meeting and no other subject shall be considered. 

 
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

REFERENCE ONLY 
Newton Falls Charter 
Article III 
 

SECTION 7. SPECIAL MEETINGS. 
   The Mayor, Vice President of Council or any two members of Council may call special 
meetings. There shall be given at least seventy-two hours notice in writing of such special 
meeting, served personally on each member of Council or at his usual place of residence. 
The specific purpose stated by the notification can only be considered at such meeting. 
(Amended November 4, 2003) 

 
 



VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO 
ORDINANCE NO.: 2024-21  
SPONSOR: Councilpersons Rufener, Stimpert, Axiotis 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 121.03(m) OF THE CODIFIED 
ORDINANCES RELATING TO PUBLIC AND CLOSING COMMENTS AT 

EMERGENCY COUNCIL MEETINGS  
 
WHEREAS, Council desires to amend Sections 121.03(m) of the Codified Ordinances 
relating to the order of business for emergency meetings to make the language of this 
section conform to ARTICLE III, SECTION 25. PUBLIC AND CLOSING COMMENTS 
paragraph c. of the Newton Falls Charter.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Newton Falls, State of Ohio, hereby 
ordains:  
 
SECTION 1. That Sections 121.03(m) of the Village Administrative Code is hereby 
amended as set forth in the attachment hereto that is incorporated herein by reference.  
 
SECTION 2. That all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the 
adoption of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and all 
deliberations of this Council or any of its committees that resulted in such formal action 
were taken in meetings open to the public and/or in compliance with all legal 
requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.  
 
SECTION 3. That this Ordinance shall be effective as of the earliest date permitted by 
law.  
 

PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS _____ DAY OF _________, 2024. 
 

 
________________________________  
David Hanson, Mayor 
 

Attest:                 ________________________________ 
Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council  
 

Approved as to Legal Form.   _______________________________ 
Jeff Limbian, Law Director 
 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE 2024 – 20   Exhibit A  Page 1 of 1 
 
 

 
121.03 MEETINGS. 

   (m)   Order of Business for Emergency Meetings. The agenda for each Emergency 
Council meeting shall include. 
 
       (1)   Call to Order 
      (2)   Pledge of Allegiance 
       (3)   Invocation or Moment of Silence 
       (4)   Roll Call 

(5)   Public Comments (limited to those items as identified on the agenda)   
       (6)   Unfinished/New Business (As identified in Emergency Meeting Agenda) 
       (7)   Motion to recess to Executive Session (if necessary) 

(8)   Public Comments (limited to those items as identified on the agenda)  
       (9)   Motion to adjourn 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 

REFERENCE 
Newton Falls Charter 
Article III 
 

SECTION 25. PUBLIC AND CLOSING COMMENTS. 
 

c. Emergency Council Meetings. At Emergency Council Meetings, prior to the time 
Council votes on any agenda item, members of the public in attendance shall have  
up to three minutes for Public Comments on any items on the agenda. 
(Added November 8, 2022.) 

 
 



VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO 
ORDINANCE NO.: 2024-22 
SPONSOR: Councilpersons Rufener, Stimpert, Benetis, Persino 
 

AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ACCEPT THE 
PROPOSAL OF OHM ADVISORS FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE 

NEWTON FALLS 2024 PAVING PROGRAM 
 
WHEREAS, Orchard, Hiltz & McCliment, Inc., dba OHM Advisors (“OHM”), presently provides 
engineering services for the Village; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the parameters of the Village’s engineering services agreement with 
OHM, OHM has presented a proposal to the Village for the provision of engineering services 
related to the Newton Falls 2024 Paving Program. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Newton Falls, State of Ohio, 
hereby ordains: 
 
SECTION 1. That Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to accept the attached 
proposal, or a proposal substantially similar thereto, from OHM in the amount of $53,700 for 
the provision of engineering services related to the Newton Falls 2024 
Paving Program. 
 
SECTION 2. That all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the 
adoption of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and all 
deliberations of this Council or any of its committees that resulted in such formal action 
were taken in meetings open to the public and/or in compliance with all legal 
requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 
SECTION 3.  This Ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency measure necessary for 
the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, safety or welfare of the citizens of the 
Village of Newton Falls to ensure the 2024 Paving Program is instituted and that all grant 
monies obtained for the project are used in accordance with the funding source guidelines. 
 
SECTION 4. That this Ordinance shall be effective as of the earliest date 
permitted by law. 
 

PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS _____ DAY OF _______________, 2024. 
 

 
      ____________________________________ 

David Hanson, Mayor 
 
Attest:      _____________________________________  

Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council  
Approved as to Legal Form. 

      _____________________________________ 
      Jeff Limbian, Law Director 
 



 

 
 

 

March 20, 2024 
 

Village of Newton Falls 
Attn: Michael A. Novotny, Interim City Manager 
612 West Broad Street 
Newton Falls, OH 44444 
 

RE: Newton Falls 2024 Paving Program 
 Location:  Village of Newton Falls 

Proposal #23087 
 

Dear Mr. Novotny: 
 

The following scope of services, price proposal, and project schedule which represent our understanding of the 
project, based upon prior discussions, meetings, and/or additional project information made available at the time 
of this proposal. Should you have any questions, please let us know. 
 

Proposal Outline 

Proposal Outline ...................................................................................................................................................................... 1 

Project Understanding ............................................................................................................................................................ 2 

Scope of Services - Information Gathering Tasks ............................................................................................................. 2 

Scope of Services - Design Engineering Tasks ................................................................................................................... 2 

Scope of Services - Bidding and Award Tasks .................................................................................................................... 3 

Scope of Services - Construction Services Tasks ............................................................................................................... 4 

Price Proposal ........................................................................................................................................................................... 5 

Anticipated Project Schedule ................................................................................................................................................. 6 

Clarifications and Assumptions ............................................................................................................................................. 6 

Client Responsibilities ............................................................................................................................................................. 6 

Terms & Conditions ................................................................................................................................................................ 6 

 

Sincerely, 
OHM Advisors      Authorization to Proceed 
 
 
     
Chad M. Lewis, PE     Signature   Date 
Project Manager 
Chad.lewis@ohm-advisors.com 
D: 216.865.1345       
  Printed Name Title 
   
Tony Burgoyne, PE 
Principal 
Tony.burgoyne@ohm-advisors.com 



Newton Falls – 2024 Paving Program 
March 20, 2024 
Page 2 of 6 
 

 

Project Understanding 

The referenced project includes asphalt pavement resurfacing on Church Street, Bane Street, Oak Knoll Street, 

and on Maple Drive at the intersection with Milton Boulevard. 

 

This proposal includes professional services for pavement cores, design engineering, bidding services and 

construction administration services in accordance with the scoped tasks described herein. 

 

Scope of Services - Information Gathering Tasks 

Task #3 Pavement Cores          

• The following services are included in the fee shown: 

o Performance of seven (7) pavement cores 

o Advancement to 18 inches below the pavement base material 

o Identification and evaluation of pavement properties and thickness 

o Identification and evaluation of subbase soil properties 

o Water level readings, if encountered 

o Core photos 

o Constructability cautionary notes, if applicable 

o Summary page of each core 

o This information will be used for follow-on engineering tasks 

 

Scope of Services - Design Engineering Tasks 

Task #56 Pre-Design and Field Analysis         

• The following services are included in the fee shown: 
o Field visit of the following project locations 

▪ Church Street from S. Center Street to River Street 

▪ Bane Street from Ravenna Road to S. Canal Street 

▪ Oak Knoll Street from Milton Boulevard to Lincoln Avenue 

▪ Maple Drive at the Milton Boulevard intersection 
o Determine and quantify appropriate rehabilitation measures 

▪ Manholes, catch basins, and other visible castings 

• Adjustments to grade 

• Reconstructs to grade 

▪ Pavement 

• ADA detectable warning pads replacement/installation 

• Asphalt partial and full-depth replacement areas 

• Asphalt resurfacing limits 

▪ Traffic Control 

• Pavement markings 
o Establish design criteria, standards, and specifications 

▪ Village of Newton Falls codes and ordinances 

▪ ODOT Location & Design Manuals 
o Develop preliminary cost estimate 

▪ The engineer will verify scope and cost estimate with the client’s expectations 



Newton Falls – 2024 Paving Program 
March 20, 2024 
Page 3 of 6 
 

 

 
Task #60 Construction Documents         

• The following services are included in the fee shown: 
o Preparation of 8.5x11” Construction Plan Exhibits shall be as follows: 

▪ Location Map 

▪ Roadway Typical Section 

▪ General Summary of Work Pay Items 

▪ Plan View Exhibits 

▪ Project Details 
o Design will include all details and specifications required for public bidding of a unit price 

contract, in accordance with industry standards 
o Deliverables: 

▪ Construction Plan Exhibits to be included in the Bidding Documents 
 
Task #90 Official Engineer’s Project Cost Estimate       

• The following services are included in the fee shown: 
o Finalization of estimated quantities for construction 
o Estimate and evaluation of construction costs based on historical unit bid pricing 

 

Scope of Services - Bidding and Award Tasks 
 
Task #151 Bidding and Contract Documents        

• The following services are included in the fee shown: 
o Preparation of bid documents including legal advertisement, instructions to bidders, bid forms, 

contract forms and affidavits, prevailing wage forms, EEO forms, scope of work, schedule, and 
other Owner forms and requirements to be added to the public bidding process 

o These documents will be 100% complete, ready for bidding of the Public Project 
o Bid books will be made available for purchasing by bidders  
o Contract Documents 

▪ Upon community legislation to award the construction bid, OHM will prepare (3) three 
copies of contract documents for execution, bonding, insurance, etc. 

▪ OHM will prepare the notice of commencement for signature(s) 
 
 
Task #152 Bid Process, Review, and Award        

• The following services are included in the fee shown: 
o Addendums/Clarifications 

▪ This activity is necessary to provide written explanation to all bidders for any questions 
regarding the bid documents and plans 

▪ Depending upon the size and complexity of the project, multiple addendums/clarifications 
may be required for the project 

▪ OHM will prepare addendums/clarifications and any necessary supporting documents and 
distribute to plan holders 

o Post-Bid Activities 

▪ Evaluation of bids and contractor qualifications 

▪ Pre-Award Meeting to review all bid items with apparent low bidder 

▪ Recommendation of Award to the Owner 



Newton Falls – 2024 Paving Program 
March 20, 2024 
Page 4 of 6 
 

 

Scope of Services - Construction Services Tasks 

Task #175 Pre-Construction Services         

• The following services are included in the fee shown: 
o Obtain signatures on work agreements 
o Pre-construction meeting 
o Coordination with Contractor, Utilities, Safety Forces, Residents, and Businesses 
o Personnel coordination and project schedule 
o Perform materials, suppliers, and shop drawing reviews and communicate revisions/approvals 

with contractor 
o Review contractual items 
o Distribution of documents/information (meeting records) 

Task #176 Construction Services           

• The following services are included in the fee shown: 
o Coordination with Contractor, Utilities, Safety Forces, Residents, and Businesses 
o Prepare daily inspection reports 
o Regular progress meetings with contractor 
o Inspection and testing services 
o Response to RFIs (request for information) from contractor 
o Review of pay requests and recommendations for payment 
o Negotiation of Change Orders 
o Prevailing Wage Verification 
o Coordination of Funding Reimbursements 
o Staffing will include the following: 

▪ Construction Inspector:  On-Site during all working hours of construction 

▪ Field Client Representative:  On-site weekly reviews with construction inspector, and Off-Site 
Coordination via phone with Inspector, Contractors, Owner, and Construction Manager 

▪ Construction Manager:  On-site Reviews as needed/Off-Site Coordination with Inspector, 
Contractors, and Owner where possible via phone to control costs 

▪ Construction Engineer: Involved on an as-needed basis to facilitate field decisions and 
design-related issues. 

▪ Construction Administrative Assistant: Coordination of all documentation from pre-
construction, contracts, pay requests, and close-out documents 

▪ Typical Weekly Staffing for a 40-hour/week construction project is approximately: 

• Construction Inspector:     40 Hours 

• Field Client Representative      4 Hours 

• Construction Manager:           4 Hours 

• Construction Engineer:       1 Hour 

• Construction Admin:        2 Hours 
o Total Budget Cost per 40-hour week Project = $ 6,880 

o Total Cost is therefore directly related to the time duration of the construction project 

Task #177 Post-Construction Services         

• The following services are included in the fee shown: 
o Review of final construction with contractor and Owner 
o Preparation, distribution, and approval of final punch list 
o Review of As-Built Drawings 
o Maintenance Bond Coordination 



Newton Falls – 2024 Paving Program 
March 20, 2024 
Page 5 of 6 
 

 

o Lien releases, payments, and final acceptance 

Task #178 Additional Construction Services   If Authorized      

• This task has been included as an “If Authorized” fee in the event that one or more of the following 
conditions occur: 

o The Contractor’s work schedule exceeds the number of weeks assumed in Price Proposal table 
o The Contractor’s work schedule includes work weeks exceeding 40 hours 
o The Contractor’s work process requires multiple work crews and therefore multiple inspectors 

on-site simultaneously 
o The Contractor is granted extra time (time extension) to complete the project 
o The Contractor is awarded a change order for additional work or changed work conditions 

• If any of the above conditions apply, the Engineer shall document and estimate the total cost to complete 
the additional inspection services and request authorization/approval from the Owner to cover these 
costs 

Price Proposal 
 

# Information Gathering Tasks Fee 

Task #3 Pavement Cores $ 4,250 

 Subtotal =  $ 4,250 

# Design Engineering Tasks Fee 

Task #56 Pre-Design and Field Analysis $ 4,500 

Task #60 Construction Documents $ 4,500 

Task #90 Official Engineer’s Project Cost Estimate $ 1,250 

 Subtotal =  $10,250 

# Bidding and Award Tasks Fee 

Task #151 Bidding and Contract Documents $ 4,000 

Task #152 Bid Process, Review, and Award $ 4,000 

 Subtotal =  $ 8,000 

# Construction Services Tasks Fee 

Task #175 Pre-Construction Services $  1,840 

Task #176 Construction Services $ 27,520* 

Task #177 Post-Construction Services $  1,840 

Task #178 Additional Construction Services (If Authorized) TBD 

 Subtotal =  $ 31,200 

 Grand Total =  $ 53,700 



Newton Falls – 2024 Paving Program 
March 20, 2024 
Page 6 of 6 
 

 

Compensation 

The fee proposal above shall be completed on a lump sum basis.  

Anticipated Project Schedule* 
 
Information Gathering Tasks: April – May 2024 
 
Design Engineering Tasks: May – June 2024 
 
Bidding & Award Tasks:  June – July 2024 
 
Construction Services Tasks: August – October 2024 
 
*Schedule assumes authorization to proceed on April 3, 2024 
 

Clarifications and Assumptions 

• Our Proposal was prepared based on the following assumptions: 

o If additional labor effort or change in schedule is required beyond described herein, OHM Advisors 

will negotiate an amendment with the Village of Newton Falls. OHM Advisors will not proceed with 

additional services without written authorization to proceed from the Village of Newton Falls. 

o Meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the Scope of Services as described herein. Additional 

meetings, not described within our Scope of Services, shall be considered additional services and will 

be billed on an hourly basis under the Additional As-Needed Services Allowance upon agreement with 

the Village of Newton Falls. 

Client Responsibilities 

• Village of Newton Falls will provide a single point of contact to OHM Advisors who is knowledgeable 

about the project needs and desired outcomes. 

• Village of Newton Falls will provide the following, if available, to assist us with the project: (prior as-builts 

and existing plans, plat maps, site surveys indicating site boundaries, exiting topography, access to structures, 

easements and utility line information, utility availability, building information, etc.) 

Terms & Conditions 

The Terms and Conditions contained in the Annual Engineering contract per ordinance number 2022-55 shall also 
apply to this contract. 
 

*Proposed fee based on four (4) weeks of full time inspection services (40 hours per week). Additional fee 
will be needed for services beyond this duration, as explained in Task #178. 



VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO 
ORDINANCE NO.: 2024-23 
SPONSOR: Councilpersons Rufener, Stimpert, Benetis, Persino 
 
 

AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ACCEPT THE 
PROPOSAL OF POLLARD LAND SERVICES FOR EMERGENCY SEWER REPLACEMENT 

INSTALLATION SERVICES FOR WEST RIVER ROAD 
 
WHEREAS, sewer line issues have been persistent for the residents of West River Road from 
2250 West River Road to Spencer Street; and 
 
WHEREAS, those sewer line issues have affected the residences of that area and are 
regarded by the Village as consistently problematic causing persistent backup and flooding 
into the basements of residents; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Village has spent a significant amount of time and resources the past few 
years to manage the issues, but have been unable to correct the issues; and 
 
WHEREAS, due to the amount of work the Village has performed on this issue, the Village 
understands that there are multiple issues with the sewer line to be replaced with a larger line 
that meets current standards. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Newton Falls, State of Ohio, 
hereby ordains: 
 
SECTION 1. That Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to accept the attached proposal 
from Pollard Land Services who is the current contractor installing the Scott Street Sewer 
Project and who has the supplies and equipment on-site to perform the work for a cost that is 
not to exceed the amount stated in the proposal. 
. 
SECTION 2. That all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the 
adoption of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and all 
deliberations of this Council or any of its committees that resulted in such formal action 
were taken in meetings open to the public and/or in compliance with all legal 
requirements, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 
SECTION 3.  This Ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency measure necessary for 
the immediate health, safety or welfare of the citizens of the Village of Newton Falls who are 
affected by this ineffective sanitary sewer line. 
 
SECTION 4. That this Ordinance shall be effective as of the earliest date 
permitted by law. 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 
ORDINANCE NO: 2024-23 
PAGE 2 
 
PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS _____ DAY OF _______________, 2024. 
 

 
      ____________________________________ 

David Hanson, Mayor 
 
Attest:      _____________________________________  

Michael Acomb, Clerk of Council  
Approved as to Legal Form. 

      _____________________________________ 
      Jeff Limbian, Law Director 
 




	1regular meeting AGENDA 04-17-24 FINAL
	special meeting MINUTES 01-25-24 DRAFT
	emergency meeting MINUTES 03-28-24
	emergency meeting MINUTES 04-01-24
	1regular meeting MINUTES 04-03-24 DRAFT - Copy
	2024-11 Ord Approp Amend 01
	VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO
	ORDINANCE NO.: 2024-11
	SPONSOR: Councilpersons Rufener, Stimpert
	PAGE TWO
	_____________________________________
	David Hanson, Mayor
	Approved as to Legal Form.
	_____________________________________

	2024-11 Exh 2024 Aps Amend 01 amended
	2024-14 Ord Public Records Division (amended)
	VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO
	ORDINANCE NO.: 2024-14 (amended)
	SPONSOR: Councilpersons Stimpert, Benetis
	USECTION 1.U  That the Village of Newton Falls ordains to increase the salary of the  City Clerk / Clerk of Council from $25,000.00 to $37,500.00 with no benefits, amounting to an increase of $12,500.00 per year based on a rate of $24.00 per hour.
	USECTION 2.U  That all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the adoption of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and all deliberations of this Council or any of its committees that resulted in such formal ...
	____________________________________
	David Hanson, Mayor
	Approved as to Legal Form.
	_____________________________________

	2024-18 Ord Disposal List
	VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO
	ORDINANCE NO.: 2024-18
	SPONSOR: Councilpersons Stimpert and Rufener
	USECTION 1.U  That the Council declares the items listed in Exhibit A - Disposal List 04/01/24 as obsolete and unusable to the Village of Newton Falls.
	USECTION 2.U   That the Village Council directs the Interim City Manager to dispose of the items listed in Exhibit A to the highest bidder by public auction on GovDeals.com
	USECTION 2U.  That all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the adoption of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and all deliberations of this Council or any of its committees that resulted in such formal ...
	ORDINANCE NO.: 2024-18
	____________________________________
	David Hanson, Mayor
	Approved as to Legal Form.
	_____________________________________

	2024-18 Exh Disposal List 4-01-24
	2024-19 Ord Ford F-550 Dump Truck
	VILLAGE OF NEWTON FALLS, OHIO
	ORDINANCE NO.: 2024-19
	SPONSOR: Councilpersons Axiotis, Rufener, Benetis, Persino
	USECTION 1.U  That Council hereby and herein authorizes the Interim City
	Manager to enter into an agreement to purchase a new 2024 Ford F-550 truck from
	Sarchione Ford Lincoln of Alliance, Ohio for $72,730.00 as set forth in the attached
	quotation;
	ORDINANCE NO.: 2024-19
	PAGE TWO
	USECTION 2.U  The Council also hereby and herein authorizes the Interim City
	Manager to enter into an agreement to have the same, new 2024 Ford F-550 truck from
	Sarchione Ford Lincoln of Alliance, Ohio upfitted with a Stainless-Steel Dump Bed, plow system, salt spreader, and other equipment by Quality Truck Body of Youngstown, as
	set forth in the attached quotations, for a separate and total amount of $59,998.00, pursuant to the State of Ohio Department of Transportation specifications.
	USECTION 3.U  The Council also hereby and herein authorizes the Interim City
	Manager to enter into an agreement with Ford Credit Municipal Financing to have the same, new 2024 Ford F-550 truck from Sarchione Ford Lincoln of Alliance, Ohio upfitted with a Stainless-Steel Dump Bed, plow system, salt spreader, and other equipment...
	____________________________________
	David Hanson, Mayor
	Approved as to Legal Form.
	_____________________________________

	2024-19 Exh A Ford Credit Financing Quote Ford F-550 Street Department
	2024-19 Exh B Ford F-550 Sarchione Quote
	2024-19 Exh C Ford F-550 Quality Truck Quote
	2024-20 Ord Exh Public notice of Special Meetings
	2024-21 Ord Exh Emergency Meeting Agenda template
	2024-22 Ord Emergency 2024 Street Paving
	____________________________________
	David Hanson, Mayor
	Approved as to Legal Form.
	_____________________________________

	2024-22 Exh 23087_NF_2024 Paving Program_FINAL4
	2024-23 Ord Emergency Sewer Replacement W River Road
	____________________________________
	David Hanson, Mayor
	Approved as to Legal Form.
	_____________________________________

	2024-23 Exh Pollard Land Services West River Road Sewer Quote

